
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

The City Bridge Trust Committee 

 
Date: THURSDAY, 10 JANUARY 2013 

Time: 1.45 pm 

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOMS, WEST WING, GUILDHALL 

Members: Deputy Billy Dove (Chairman) 
Deputy Wendy Mead (Deputy Chairman) 
Deputy Ken Ayers (Chief Commoner) 
John Bird 
Ray Catt 
Alderman Alison Gowman 
Deputy Revd Stephen Haines 
Michael Henderson-Begg 
Alderman Peter Hewitt 
Vivienne Littlechild 
Deputy Edward Lord 
Jeremy Mayhew 
Deputy Joyce Nash 
Ian Seaton 
The Rt Hon the Lord Mayor Alderman Roger Gifford (Ex-Officio Member) 
 

 
 
 
Enquiries: Gregory Moore 

tel. no.: 0207 332 3113 
gregory.moore@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

 
 

 
Lunch will be served for Members in the Guildhall Club at 1pm 

 

 
John Barradell 

Town Clerk and Chief Executive 

Public Document Pack



2 
 

AGENDA 

 
 

Part 1 - Public Agenda 
 
1. APOLOGIES 
 
2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF 

ITEMS ON THE AGENDA 
 
3. MINUTES 
 To agree the public minutes and summary of the meeting held on 29 November 2012 

(copy attached). 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 1 - 10) 

 
4. OUTSTANDING ITEMS 
 Report of the Town Clerk (copy attached). 
 For Information 
 (Pages 11 - 14) 

 
5. TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 In accordance with the Order of the Court of 6 December 2012, the Committee is 

invited to review their terms of reference prior to their submission to the Court at its 
meeting in April 2013. 

 For Decision 
 (Pages 15 - 16) 

 
6. REVENUE BUDGETS - 2013/14 
 Joint report of the Town Clerk and Chamberlain (copy attached). 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 17 - 22) 

 
7. PROGRESS REPORT AND EVENTS 
 To receive a progress report of the Chief Grants Officer (copy attached). 
 For Information 
 (Pages 23 - 34) 

 
8. GRANT APPLICATIONS 
 To consider the Chief Grants Officer’s reports on grant recommendations, as follows 

(copies attached):- 
 For Decision 

 
 a) Introductory Paper  (Pages 35 - 42) 

 

 b) Grant Recommendations and Assessments  (Pages 43 - 256) 
 

 



3 
 

 Annex  

 

Organisation 

 

Recommended 

Grant  

Page 

1 Cricket for Change £120,000 45 

2 National Council for Voluntary 

Organisations 

£50,000 55 

3 Hackney Quest £120,000 65 

4 Age UK London £67,000 75 

5 Human Trafficking Foundation £120,000 85 

6 Bankside Open Spaces Trust £48,980 96 

7 London Wildlife Trust £43,770 105 

8 St Luke’s Trust £49,920 114 

9 Sustain (Alliance for Better Food and 

Farming) 

£49,920 124 

10 Rethink Mental Illness £39,000 134 

11 Alzheimer’s Society £120,000 144 

12 Camden Carer’s Centre £96,000 155 

13 Eye Music Trust £87,500 165 

14 Hackney Caribbean Elderly Association £53,150 175 

15 National Autistic Society £81,000 186 

16 Richmond Advice and Information on 

Disability (RAID) 

£71,880 197 

17 Sense £71,400 207 

18 Charlie Chaplin Adventure Playground £126,600 218 

19 Khulisa £90,000 229 

20 Hammersmith & Fulham Volunteer Centre £150,000 239 

21 Strategic Initiative: Charterhouse/Museum 

of London 

 

£152,000 249 

 



4 
 

 c) Grants Recommended for Rejection  (Pages 257 - 264) 
 
 

9. To consider reports of the Chief Grants Officer as follows (copies attached):- 
 
 a) Withdrawn and Lapsed Applications  (Pages 265 - 268) 

 

 b) Grants Approved Under Delegated Authority  (Pages 269 - 270) 
 

 c) Reports on Monitoring Visits  (Pages 271 - 276) 
 

10. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE 
 
11. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS TO BE URGENT 
 
12. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 
 MOTION – That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public 

be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that 
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part I of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act. 
 

Part 2 - Non-Public Agenda 
 
13. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES 
 To agree the non-public minutes of the meeting held on 29 November 2012 (copy 

attached). 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 277 - 278) 

 
14. SOCIAL INVESTMENT BOARD UPDATE 
 Report of the Chief Grants Officer (copy attached). 
 For Information 
 (Pages 279 - 282) 

 
15. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE 
 
16. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND 

WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE 
PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED 

 



THE CITY BRIDGE TRUST COMMITTEE 
 

29 November 2012 
 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE CITY BRIDGE TRUST COMMITTEE HELD 
AT GUILDHALL, EC2 ON THURSDAY, 29 NOVEMBER 2012 AT 1:45PM. 
 
Present 
 
Members: 
Deputy Billy Dove (Chairman) 
Deputy and Sheriff Wendy Mead (Deputy Chairman) 
Deputy Ken Ayers, the Chief Commoner 
Ray Catt 
Alderman Alison Gowman 
Vivienne Littlechild 
Jeremy Mayhew  
Ian Seaton 
   
Officers:   
Greg Moore - Town Clerk’s Department 
Steve Reynolds - Chamberlain’s Department 
Clare Thomas - Chief Grants Officer 
Sandra Davidson - The City Bridge Trust 
Jenny Field - The City Bridge Trust 
Stewart Goshawk - The City Bridge Trust 
Jemma Grieve Combes - The City Bridge Trust 
John Merivale - The City Bridge Trust 
Ciaran Rafferty - The City Bridge Trust 
Tim Wilson - The City Bridge Trust 

Liz Skelcher - Economic Development Office 

Susanna Lascelles - Public Relations Office 
 
Also Present: 
Representatives from the following organisations, whom the Chairman welcomed to 
the meeting, were also present:- 
 

• Migration Museum Project (Annex 4) 
 
1. APOLOGIES 

Apologies for absence were received from John Bird, Deputy Revd Stephen 
Haines, Michael Henderson-Begg, Alderman Peter Hewitt, Deputy Edward 
Lord, and Deputy Joyce Nash.  
 

2. DECLARATIONS BY MEMBERS OF PERSONAL OR PREJUDICIAL 
INTERESTS IN RESPECT OF ITEMS TO BE CONSIDERED AT THIS 
MEETING 

 There were none. 
 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



3. MINUTES 
 The public minutes and summary of the meeting held on 27 September 2012 

were approved, subject to it being noted that Deputy Mead’s term of office as 
Sheriff had ceased by the date of the meeting. 

 
 MATTERS ARISING 

(1) London Air Ambulance (p3) – As suggested at the previous meeting, it 
was confirmed that the helicopter had only been painted very recently following 
the withdrawal of sponsorship from Virgin and that there would be a 
prohibitively high cost associated with any re-spray. Further, given the wide 
range of sources from which the organisation received funding, to include the 
logos of all funders would be impractical. The Deputy Chairman also noted that, 
in any case, the Trust’s funding was for a Patient Liaison Nurse and not the 
helicopter itself. 

 
4. OUTSTANDING ITEMS 

The Committee received a report of the Town Clerk identifying those items 
raised at meetings of the Committee that required further action by officers. 
 
It was noted that the application from the Rugby Football Foundation was on 
today’s agenda as recommended for rejection, with fuller reasons for the 
recommendation listed. Members were also advised that discussions had taken 
place with the Shakespeare Globe Trust with regard to their application, and 
officers were waiting to see if a revised application would now be submitted. 
 
RESOLVED: That the contents of the report be noted. 
 

5. PROGRESS REPORT AND EVENTS 
 The Committee received the regular progress report of the Chief Grants Officer 

which highlighted the various activities that were on-going or had recently 
concluded. 

 
The Chairman took the opportunity to inform Members that the Trust had 
recently won the award for “Best Annual Report - non-profit/public sector” at the 
CorpComms award ceremonies, and congratulated officers on their success. 

 
In response to a question about the Wembley National Stadium Trust (WNST), 
it was advised that the first grants programme was now open for applications 
and grants would be considered by the WNST Board in January. 

 
 RESOLVED: That the contents of the report be noted. 
 
6a. GRANT APPLICATIONS 
 The Committee considered a report of the Chief Grants Officer, introducing the 

grants programmes and stating that a total of thirty-four applications would be 
dealt with at the meeting, of which four were strategic initiatives, fourteen were 
recommended for grants and ten recommended for rejection, with two having 
been withdrawn. Four grants were also noted as having been approved under 
delegated authority. 

 

Page 2



 RESOLVED: That the contents of the report be noted. 
 
6b. GRANT RECOMMENDATIONS AND ASSESSMENTS 
 The Committee considered a report of the Chief Grants Officer recommending 

grants to organisations. 
 
 During consideration of the applications before the Committee, the following 

comments were made by Members of the Committee and relevant officers: 
 

• In respect of the application at Annex 1 (Guildhall School Trust), a Member 
expressed a slight reservation as to the legal advice provided, particularly in 
light of some confusion which appeared to exist within the application form 
surrounding the numbers of staff and the property owned, which hinted at 
some confusion on the position between the Guildhall School Trust and the 
Guildhall School of Music & Drama itself. It was asked if definite assurances 
could be sought and obtained prior to the release of funds, and authority was 
subsequently delegated to the Town Clerk, in consultation with the Chairman 
and Deputy Chairman, to approve the grant following the receipt of these 
reassurances from the Comptroller & City Solicitor’s Department. 

• At Annex 2 (Deafinitely Theatre), a Member noted that the Management 
Committee of the applicant was composed of four individuals and also that 
three of the applicants’ Trustees had recently changed and sought assurances 
that the governance of the organisation was sufficiently stable. The Grants 
Officer clarified that organisations often had a larger number of Trustees from 
which a smaller Management Committee was drawn and undertook to explore 
the issue and report back to the Member. The grant was subsequently 
approved subject to this check proving satisfactory. 

• In response to a Member’s query at Annex 4 (Migration Museum Project), the 
Grants Officer informed the Committee that the applicant had recently 
received confirmation of funding from the Esmée Fairbairn, Rayne, and 
Rothschild Foundations. There had only been one full-time employee of the 
organisation to date with a strong Management Committee in place to prepare 
for a launch once sufficient funding had been secured, and now that this was 
in place, the organisation was able to expand. 

• A condition was placed upon the grant to the applicant at Annex 8 (Soil 
Association), making it subject to the receipt of the latest signed accounts.  

• A typographical error was noted at Annex 9 (UP Project), with the Grants 
Officer advising that the missing words at the end of the first paragraph on 
page 118 should read “additional benefits.” It was also noted that Alderman 
Alison Gowman had attended the assessment visit with the Grants Officer, 
and the Chairman thanked her for her input. 

• The Chairman advised that the application at Annex 10 (Charlie Chaplin 
Adventure Playground) had been deferred and would be considered at the 
January meeting. 

• In reference to Annex 12 (Reach Volunteering), a Member expressed 
concerns with regard to the significant deficit incurred by the applicant for the 
year ending 31 December 2011, and also noted that the organisation’s lease 

Page 3



on its accommodation was due to expire in 2015. The Grants Officer advised 
that he was confident that the applicant would renew the lease on its current 
property prior to expiry and gave assurances that the issue would be 
monitored. With regard to the deficit, he reassured Members that the 
organisation had been subject to significant scrutiny from himself and the 
Chamberlain, who were satisfied that the recent introduction of a new senior 
management team combined with a reduction made in the number of full-time 
staff employed would lead to annual surpluses being generated in the near 
future. 

• The Chairman noted that Vivienne Littlechild had attended the assessment 
visit in respect of the application at Annex 15 (Calthorpe Project) and thanked 
her for her involvement. 

• A minor amendment to the recommendation at Annex 16 (Jobs in Mind) was 
made, noting that the funding should be “towards” the salary of the post, and 
not “for” the salary. 

 
 RESOLVED: That the following grants be approved:- 
 
Annex  
Number 

Organisation 
(and Borough 
that Benefits) 

 

Grant Approved 

Category: Accessible London 
1. Guildhall School Trust 

(London-wide) 
£370,200 towards the disability access 
elements of the capital development costs 
of Milton Court, subject to the receipt of 
satisfactory legal advice from the 
Comptroller & City Solicitor. 

Category: Accessible London – Arts & Sports 
2. 
 

Deafinitely Theatre 
(London-wide) 

£150,000 over three years (3 x £50,000) 
towards the costs of a programme 
developing the talents of deaf people 
within the theatre, subject to the 
organisation’s management structure 
being confirmed. 

Category: Bridging Communities 
3. Fight for Peace 

(Newham, Waltham 
Forest, Barking & 
Dagenham, Tower 
Hamlets) 
 

£140,000 over three years (£45,300; 
£46,700; £48,000) towards the salaries of 
a Youth Programme Co-ordinator and 
Project Manager with associated running 
and overhead costs. 

4. Migration Museum Project 
(London-wide) 

£50,000 over two years (2 x £25,000) 
towards the costs of two full-time salaries 
delivering an education programme. 

5. 
 
 

Wigmore Hall Trust 
(Westminster) 

£52,000 over three years (£16,500; 
£17,500; £18,000) towards the Community 
Chamber Music Programme. 
 

Page 4



Category: Improving Londoners’ Mental Health 
6. Roundabout 

(Several London 
boroughs) 
 

£90,000 over three years (3 x £30,000) 
towards the salary and related costs of the 
full-time Administrator. 

7. 
 
 
 

River Thames Boat 
Project 
(Several London 
boroughs) 

£86,000 over 3 years (£24,000; £29,500; 
£32,500) towards the costs of a part-time 
Co-ordinator developing an environmental 
education programme in several London 
boroughs. 

Category: London’s Environment 
8. Soil Association 

(Several East London 
boroughs) 

£50,000 for continuation of the Farm 
Academy project in London for a third and 
final year, conditional upon a satisfactory 
report on Year 2 of the existing grant and 
the receipt of the latest signed accounts, 

9. UP Project 
(Several London 
boroughs) 

£90,000 over three years (3 x £30,000) 
towards a programme of environmental 
education activities on the floating cinema, 
subject to the receipt of a satisfactory work 
schedule for the first year. 

Category: Positive Transitions to Independent Living 
10. Charlie Chaplin Adventure 

Playground 
 

N/A (this application was deferred). 

11. 
 
 

Trinity Community Centre 
(Several London 
boroughs) 

£88,000 over 3 years (£28,550; £29,350; 
£30,100) towards a part-time (22.5 hours 
per week) caseworker to provide advocacy 
and support for refugees and asylum 
seekers leaving care, conditional upon the 
organisation formally agreeing a reserves 
policy. 

12. Reach Volunteering 
(London-wide) 

£120,000 over three (3 x £40,000) towards 
the costs of delivering the TrusteeWorks 
programme for London, with the release of 
quarterly payments in Year 1 conditional 
upon receipt of satisfactory management 
accounts. 

Category: Strategic Initiatives 
13. i) Association of 

Charitable Foundations 
(ACF) 

£160,000 (£47,000, £56,000, £57,000) to 
be costed against the budget for Strategic 
Initiatives 2012/13 to co-ordinate and 
communicate City Philanthropy; to 
continue to manage the City Philanthropy 
website; and to extend the development of 
City Philanthropy. 
 

 ii) The Funding Network £30,000 (3x£10,000) to run two City 
Funding Network events per annum over 
three years, to be costed against the 

Page 5



budget for Strategic Initiatives 2012/13. 
 

 iii) Young Philanthropy £41,000 (£17,250, £14,000, £7,750) to 
develop philanthropy syndicates in the City 
over three years, to be costed against the 
budget for Strategic Initiatives 2012/13. 
 

14. NCVO & VE Merger 
 

£50,000 towards the due diligence and 
associated costs of the merger of the 
National Council for Voluntary 
Organisations and Volunteering England, 
to be costed against the Strategic 
Initiatives 2012/13 budget. 

Category: Growing Localities – Growing & Greening 
15. Calthorpe Project 

(Camden) 
£31,700 over two years (£15,690; £16,010) 
to meet the salary and running costs of the 
Community Food Growing Project. 

16. Jobs in Mind 
(London-wide) 

£50,000 over two years (2 x £25,000) 
towards the salary of a full-time Project Co-
ordinator to run and expand the Urban 
Growth Project. 

 
6c. GRANTS RECOMMENDED FOR REJECTION 

The Committee considered a report of the Chief Grants Officer recommending 
ten grant applications in the Working with Londoners programme be rejected for 
the reasons identified in the schedule attached to the report. 

 
 RESOLVED: That the grant applications detailed in the schedule attached to 

the report be rejected. 
 
7a. WITHDRAWN & LAPSED APPLICATIONS  
 The Committee received a report of the Chief Grants Officer detailing two 

applications that had been withdrawn. 
 
 RESOLVED: That the contents of the report be noted. 
 
7b. GRANTS APPROVED UNDER DELEGATED AUTHORITY 
 The Committee received a report of the Chief Grants Officer advising Members 

of four grants, totalling £71,020, which had been approved under delegated 
authority since the last meeting of the Committee as follows: 

 

• Mapping for Change - £4,320 for a London-wide educational and awareness 
event on air pollution, subject to sight of satisfactory draft management 
accounts for the current year.  

• Kongolese Children’s Association - £25,000 over two years (£12,500; 
£12,500) for the provision of English teaching, incorporating English through 
employment training, for women from minority communities. 

• Kainos Community - £21,000 for a third and final year towards salary and 
project costs of a rehabilitation and resettlement programme for prisoners on 
indeterminate sentences held at HMP Swaleside. 

Page 6



• Bermondsey Artists’ Group - £20,700 over two years (£10,000; £10,700) to 
meet the salaries and associated running costs of weekly “Grow to Sell” 
gardening session 
 

 RESOLVED: That the contents of the report be noted. 
 
7c. REPORTS ON MONITORING VISITS 
 The Committee received a report of the Chief Grants Officer relative to two 

visits that had been undertaken.  
 
 RESOLVED: That the contents of the report be noted. 
 
8. CITY OF LONDON CORPORATION’S EMPLOYABILITY PARTNERSHIP 

The Committee considered a report of the Chief Grants Officer concerning the 
establishment of an employability initiative in partnership with Central London 
Forward to be aimed at providing a flexible menu of joined-up, cross-borough 
provision able to meet the needs of both employers and unemployed people 
across Borough boundaries in Central London. 
 
Members were advised that the suggestion for the scheme had arisen from 
discussions at the Resource Allocation Sub-Committee Away Day, where it had 
been suggested by a Member as an additional piece of work that could be done 
on top of the “NEET” offer to enhance the employability work done by Central 
London Forward. It was confirmed that Central London Forward staff were 
based in the Corporation’s Economic Development Office so good links were in 
place, and assurances were given that the Department of Community & 
Children's Services had been involved in the drafting of the report. 
 
RESOLVED: That, subject to the concurrence of the Policy & Resources and 
Finance Committees and the Court of Common Council, approval be given to 
the approach outlined in the report for a new employability initiative for Central 
London, the City and neighbouring boroughs. 
 

9. REVIEW OF CITY BRIDGE TRUST’S COMMUNICATIONS PLAN 
The Committee considered a joint report of the Chief Grants Officer and the 
Director of Public Relations setting out the Trust’s Communications Plan and 
progress achieved since April 2012, as well as presenting the ways in which it 
was intended to measure and report the impact of publicity in future. 

 
A Member stressed the importance of publicity, suggesting that the correct use 
of media could help increase readership of the Trust’s work, thereby increasing 
awareness of the Trust and encouraging an increased number of applications 
from those charities who might not have previously been aware of its existence.  
 
In respect of measuring the success and impact of publicity, it was observed 
that it would be beneficial to discover what media the objects of any research 
viewed or read so that the Trust could tailor and target its media activities 
appropriately.   
 

Page 7



Discussion took place over whether or not it would be more appropriate to focus 
on “old” media, such as print, or whether utilising “new” media such as web 
publications and social media might be more productive, with the suggestion 
made that the Trust’s approach could be more innovative through the use of a 
multimedia approach.  
 
With regard to the use of Twitter, Members were asked to contact the Public 
Relations Office should they desire any training, and officers were also asked to 
circulate instructions setting out how Members could set up Google alerts to 
ensure they received relevant news updates. The Chief Grants Officer also 
advised the Committee that she was to host a session with those organisations 
who had been awarded grants under the Growing Localities scheme to discuss 
the best ways of publicising their activities, and she would provide an update in 
due course. 

 
RESOLVED: That Members approve the City Bridge Trust’s Communications 
Plan for 2012 – March 2013 and that thereafter it be reviewed annually. 

 
10. BUSINESS PLAN: QUARTER 2 UPDATE 

The Committee received a report of the Chief Grants Officer providing Members 
with an update on progress made towards achieving the objectives set out in 
the City Bridge Trust business plan for 2012-13. 
 
With regard to the Key Performance Indicator associated with Learning and 
Sharing, the Chief Grants Officer advised that it was felt that it would be best to 
hold off the Annual Conference in the wake of the quinquennial review and 
instead use the opportunity to link the review’s launch with the Conference. 
 
RESOLVED: That the contents of the report be noted. 

 
11. INTERNAL AUDIT DUE DILIGENCE REVIEW - UPDATE 

The Committee received a report of the Chief Grants Officer providing an 
update on progress made in implementing the recommendations of the Internal 
Audit’s Due Diligence Review. 
 
It was noted that a fuller report would be presented to the next meeting of the 
Audit & Risk Management Committee. 

 
RECEIVED. 

 
12. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORKING OF THE 

COMMITTEE 
 There were no questions. 
 
13. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS TO BE 

URGENT 
 There were no urgent items. 
 
 
 

Page 8



14.  EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 
RESOLVED: - That under Section 100 A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on 
the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in Part I of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act as follows:- 

 
Item No      Exempt Paragraphs 

 15          3   
  
 
15. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES 
 The non-public minutes of the meeting held on 31 October 2012 were 

approved.   
 
16. QUESTIONS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE 
 There were no questions. 
 
17. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 

AND WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREES SHOULD BE CONSIDERED 
WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED 

 There were no urgent items. 
 
  
The meeting closed at 2.40pm 
 
-------------------------------------- 
CHAIRMAN 
 
Contact Officer: Greg Moore 
tel. no. 020 7332 3113 
e-mail: gregory.moore@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
 

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



Committee: Date: 

The City Bridge Trust Thursday 10 January 2013 

 

Subject: 

Outstanding Actions 

Public 

Report of: 

Town Clerk 

For Information  

 
Summary  

 
This report identifies those items raised at meetings of the City Bridge Trust 
Committee requiring further action by officers. The intention is to allow 
Members to track more easily progress made and record which outstanding 
actions have been dealt with. 
 
Those items which have arisen in the present financial year have been 
highlighted in the annex attached to the report; Members are asked to note the 
progress made to date. 

 
 
Recommendation: 
Members are asked to note the contents of this report. 

 

 
 

Contact: 
Gregory Moore 
gregory.moore@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
020 7332 3113 

Agenda Item 4

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



The City Bridge Trust Committee – Outstanding Actions 
 

 

 

 
Item 

 

 
Action 

Officer 
responsible 

 
Progress to date 

1. Shakespeare 
Globe Trust 

At your 27 September 2012 meeting, two applications recommended for 
rejection were referred back to officers for further consideration. One was 
resolved at the 29 November 2012 meeting, with it advised that further 
discussions had taken place with the outstanding organisation. 

Chief Grants 
Officer 

A response is awaited from the 
applicant as to whether or not 
they wish to revise and proceed 
with their application.  

2. Guildhall 
School Trust 

At your 29 November 2012 meeting, authority was delegated to the 
Chairman and Deputy Chairman to approve the grant to the Guildhall 
School Trust following the receipt of satisfactory legal advice. 

Town 
Clerk/Chief 
Grants Officer 

Satisfactory legal advice was 
consequently sought and 
received, and the grant 
approved accordingly. 

P
age 13



P
age 14

T
his page is intentionally left blank



The City Bridge Trust Committee 
 

Terms of Reference 
 
(a) To determine all applications for grants pursuant to the Cy Pres Scheme for the 

administration of the Charity known as the Bridge House Estates, made by the 
Charity Commissioners on 9 February 1995 and brought into effect by the 
Charities (The Bridge House Estates) Order 1995, as respects the following 
purposes:- 

 
 

(i) in or towards the provision of transport and access to it for elderly or 
disabled people in the Greater London area; and, 

(ii) for other charitable purposes for the general benefit of the inhabitants of 
Greater London; 
other than grants above a sum of £500,000. 

 
(b) Subject to the terms of the Cy Pres Scheme and criteria as to the eligibility and 

treatment of applications specified from time to time by the Court of Common 
Council:- 

 (i) to review the criteria referred to above and to make recommendations to 
the Court of Common Council for changes thereto; 

(ii) to determine conditions and other requirements to be imposed in 
connection with grants that are approved; 

(iii) to consult such persons or bodies and corporate or government 
departments as may be directed by order of the Charity Commissioners in 
the course of settling a policy for the application of funds to which the 
Scheme relates; and, 

(iv) to review, as necessary, the amounts, nature and spread of grants 
approved or refused, and the operation of administrative arrangements for 
the Scheme. 

 
 
 

Agenda Item 5

Page 15



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



Committee(s): Date(s): 

The City Bridge Trust Committee 10 January 2013 

 

Subject: 

Revenue Budgets – 2013/14 

 

Public 

Report of: 

The Chamberlain 

The Town Clerk 

For Decision 

 

 
Summary  

 

This report provides the annual submission of the revenue budgets overseen 
by your Committee. In particular it seeks approval to the provisional budget 
for 2013/14, for subsequent submission to the Finance Committee. The 
budgets have been prepared within the resources allocated to the Town 
Clerk and are summarised in the table below.  
 

 
Table 1 
Summary Revenue Budget 
for the City Bridge Trust 
Committee 

Latest 
Approved 
Budget 
2012/13 
£000 

 
Original 
Budget 
2013/14 
£000 

 
 
 

Movement 
£000 

Expenditure  
 
Income 
 
Support Services and 
Capital Charges 
 

18,549 
 

(77) 
 

76 

20,205 
 

(75) 
 
69 

1,656 
 
2 
 

(7) 

Total Net Expenditure 18,548 20,199 1,651 

 
Overall, the budgeted net expenditure for 2013/14 is estimated to be 
£20.199m, an increase of £1.651m compared with the budget for 2012/13. 
The main reasons for this net increase are:- 
 

• a new £3.2m grant giving programme for NEETS (young people Not 
in Employment, Education or Training); 

• £1.0m towards a new Employability Partnership with Central London 
Forward to provide pre-employment training and mentoring for 
young people (£2.0m in total split equally over 2013/14 and 2014/15); 
these increases are partly offset by: 

Agenda Item 6

Page 17



• the completion of a one-off grant programme in 2012/13 for £2.0m to 
mark the occasion of Her Majesty The Queen’s Diamond Jubilee in 
2012; and 

• removal of budgets carried forward from 2011/12 to 2012/13 of 
£593,000. 
 

Business priorities for the forthcoming year for the City Bridge Trust 
include promoting and implementing the Trust’s Working with Londoners 
programmes, undertaking the Quinquennial Review and developing 
proposals to tackle youth unemployment. 

 
Recommendations 

 
The Committee is requested to: 

• review the provisional 2013/14 revenue budget to ensure that it reflects 
the Committee’s objectives and, if so, approve the budget for submission 
to Finance Committee; and  

• authorise the Chamberlain to revise these budgets to allow for further 
implications arising from corporate projects. 
 

Main Report 

Introduction 

1. A cy près scheme agreed by the Charity Commission in 1995 enabled 
Bridge House Estates to distribute the Estate’s surplus income for charitable 
purposes across Greater London. The amount available for grants from the 
surplus income is determined each year by the Policy and Resources 
Committee.  

 

2. This report sets out the proposed revenue budget for 2013/14. The revenue 
budget management arrangements:  
 

• provide a clear distinction between local risk, central risk and recharge 
budgets; 

• place responsibility for budgetary control on departmental Chief 
Officers; and 

• apply a cash limit policy to Chief Officers’ budgets. 

 
 

Page 18



Business Planning Priorities 

3. The City Bridge Trust’s priorities include: 

• The promotion and implementation of the Trust’s Working with 
Londoners programmes, ensuring that the annual grants budget is 
allocated in full and that the City Bridge Trust Committee receives 
timely, accurate and high quality reports. 
 

• The Quinquennial Review – commission ‘horizon’ research, discuss 
future programmes fully with Members and consult with the wider sector 
and craft new programmes. 
 

• Strategic initiatives to tackle youth unemployment – additional resources 
are to be identified to enable the Trust to work with all London’s local 
authorities, London Councils and other partners in order to address the 
growing problem of youth unemployment.  

 

Proposed Revenue Budget for 2013/14 

4. The proposed Revenue Budget for 2013/14 is analysed between: 

• Local Risk budgets – these are the budgets deemed to be largely within 
the Chief Officer’s control. 

• Central Risk budgets – these are budgets comprising specific items where 
a Chief Officer manages the underlying service, but where the eventual 
financial outturn can be strongly influenced by external factors outside of 
his/her control or are budgets of a corporate nature (e.g. interest on 
balances and rent incomes from investment properties). 

• Support Services and Capital Charges – these cover budgets for services 
provided by one activity to another. The control of these costs is 
exercised at the point where the expenditure or income first arises as local 
or central risk. 

5. The provisional 2013/14 budgets, under the control of the Town Clerk being 
presented to your Committee, have been prepared in accordance with 
guidelines agreed by the Policy & Resources and Finance Committees. 
These include a general cash limit allowance of 1% covering both employee 
and non-employee budgets, as well as the proper control of transfers of non-
staffing budget to staffing budgets. These budgets have been prepared 
within the resources allocated to the Town Clerk. 

Page 19



6. The budgets are set out in Table 2. Income and favourable variances are 
presented in brackets. Only significant variances (generally those greater 
than £100,000) have been commented on in the following paragraphs.   

Table 2 

Revenue Budget for the City Bridge Trust Committee 

Analysis of Service 

Expenditure 

Local 

or 

Central 

Risk 

Actual 

 

2011-12 

£’000 

Latest 

Approved 

Budget 

2012-13 

£’000 

Original 

 

Budget 

2013-14 

£’000 

Movement 

2012-13 

to 

2013-14 

£’000 

Para-

graph 

Ref 

EXPENDITURE       

Employees L 666 751 753 2  

Transport Related Expenses L 2 5 4 (1)  

Supplies & Services (note i) L 166 276 279 3  

Supplies & Services (note ii) C 18,050 17,498 19,150 1,652 8 

Support Services (note iii) L 0 19 19 0  

Total Expenditure  18,884 18,549 20,205 1,656  

       

INCOME       

Customer, Client Receipts  

(note iv) 

 0 (77) (75) 2  

Total Income  0 (77) (75) 2  

       

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 

BEFORE SUPPORT 

SERVICES AND CAPITAL 

CHARGES 

 18,884 18,472 20,130 1,658  

       

SUPPORT SERVICES AND 

CAPITAL CHARGES 

      

Central Support Services & 

Capital Charges 

 217 240 233 (7)  

Recharges within Fund  (164) (164) (164) (0)  

Total Support Services and 

Capital Charges 

 53 76 69 (7)  

TOTAL NET 

EXPENDITURE/(INCOME) 

 18,937 18,548 20,199 1,651  

 

Notes 

(i) Supplies and Services – Equipment, furniture, materials, uniforms, printing, 

stationary, professional fees, grants & subscriptions. 

(ii) Supplies and Services – This relates entirely to the grants budget. 

(iii) Support Services – The support costs associated with administering the Wembley 

National Stadium Trust. 

(iv) Customer, Client Receipts – Relates to the contract income  for administering the 

Wembley National Stadium Trust. 

 

Page 20



7. Overall there is an increase of £1.651m between the 2012/13 latest approved 
budget and the 2013/14 provisional budget. This movement largely relates to 
an increase in supplies and services (central risk) expenditure of £1.652m 
which is due to: 

i) a new grants initiative for NEETS (young people Not in 
Employment, Education or Training) of £3.2m; 

ii) funding of £1.0m (£2.0m in total split equally over 2013/14 and 
2014/15) towards an employability initiative in partnership with 
Central London Forward. Referred to as the Employability 
Partnership, it aims to provide pre-employment training and 
mentoring for young people; partly offset by: 

iii) removal from the budget of a one-off additional grants programme 
of £2.0m in 2011/12 to mark the occasion of Her Majesty The 
Queen’s Diamond Jubilee; and 

iv)  removal from the budget of a one-off carry forward of £593,000 
from 2011/12 to 2012/13. 

8.  Analysis of the movement in manpower and related staff costs is shown in 
Table 3 below. 

  
 

Table 3  

Manpower Statement 

Latest Approved Budget 

2012/13 

Original Budget  

2013/14 

Manpower 

Full-time 

equivalent 

Estimated 

cost 

£000 

Manpower 

Full-time 

equivalent 

Estimated 

cost 

£000 

Administrative Staff - CBT 13.4 681 13.8 693 

Administrative Staff – WNST 0.9 47 0.9 48 

Agency Staff  6  0 

Training and Recruitment 

Advertising 

 17  12 

TOTAL EMPLOYEE COSTS 14.3 751 14.7 753 

 

Potential Further Budget Developments 

9.  The provisional nature of the revenue budgets particularly recognises that 
further revisions may arise from the necessary realignment of funds resulting 
from corporate projects including; 

• on-going PP2P reviews; 
 

Page 21



• the implementation of the City of London Procurement Service; and 
 

• central and departmental support service apportionments. 
 
 

Revenue Budget 2012/13 

10.  The forecast outturn for the current year is in line with the latest approved 
budget of £18.548m. 

 

Contact Officers:  

Town Clerks Department:  
Jenny Field (Deputy Chief Grants Officer): Jenny.Field@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

Chamberlain’s Department: 
Steven Reynolds (Group Accountant): Steven.Reynolds@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
Jenna Rigley (Senior Accountant): Jenna.Rigley@cityoflondon.gov.uk  

Page 22



Committee: Date: 

The City Bridge Trust 10th January 2013             

 

Subject: 

Progress Report 

Public 

 

Report of: 

Chief Grants Officer 

For Information 

 

Summary  

 

This is a regular Progress Report by the Chief Grants Officer. 

Recommendation 

That you receive this report and note its contents. 

Main Report 

1.0 Quinquennial Review 

 
1.1 On Monday 17th December officers launched an online consultation with 

 the charitable sector, seeking its input on draft programme priorities 
 which emerged from the discussions held at the Members’ Seminar in 

 November. Information about the survey has been emailed to 120 
 key spokespeople and is being promoted on the City Bridge Trust 

 website as well as through regular ‘tweets’ via Twitter.   

 

1.2 To widen distribution it has been sent for inclusion in newsletters to a 

 number of significant charitable membership bodies including the 
 National Council for Voluntary Organisations, London Voluntary Service 

 Council, Voice4Change England, Women’s Resource Centre and the 

 Association of Charitable Foundations. Voluntary Action Islington and the 

 National Deaf Association have also asked to circulate details to their 

 members.   

 

1.3 The online survey will close in January 2013.  As at 19th December 20 

 responses had already been received.  Final results, together with 

 answers to specific questions raised by Members, will be reported to you 

 in the New Year. 

 

 To view the survey visit: www.citybridgetrust.org.uk/survey 
 
 

 

   

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 23



2.0 FairPensions’ Annual Lecture by Al Gore, Guildhall, 18th March 

2013 

 

2.1 At its meeting on 25th October, the Court of Common Council agreed that 

the City of London Corporation will host a lecture at Guildhall, to be given 

by former U.S. Vice-President Al Gore, on Monday 18th March 2013, at a 

maximum budget of £32,000.  This followed discussions between the 

City Remembrancer, the City Bridge Trust and FairPensions.  

   

2.2 FairPensions (FP) is an educational charity whose objectives concern the 

 promotion of responsible and ethical investment for the public benefit, 

 and related research.  You have supported FP with grants totalling 

 £99,300 over three years from April 2008 under your Environment 

 theme, and the funds enabled a programme of engagement with asset 

 managers on the integration of environmental risks in fund management.  

 FP has a number of prominent UK charities amongst their membership, 

 including Christian Aid, CAFOD, Oxfam, WWF and Friends of the Earth; 

 and its recent work on investors’ obligations has attracted strong support 

 and praise within and beyond the UK’s investment community. 
 

2.3 In previous years, FairPensions’ Annual lecture has been held in the 
 Grand Committee Chamber of the House of Commons.  The Chief 

 executive of FP approached your officers over the possibility of the City’s 

 hosting this event at Guildhall, in view of the high status of Al Gore and 

 the opportunity to attract a large audience.  

 

2.4 Former Vice-President of the United States, Al Gore, is co-founder and 
 chairman of Generation Investment Management, a partnership that is 

 focused on a new approach to sustainable investing. He is also a Senior 
 Partner with the venture capital firm Kleiner Perkins Caufield & Byers, a 

 member of the board of directors of Apple, and senior adviser to Google. 

 

2.5 The guest list, of around 500, will include senior leaders across UK civil 

 society; trustees and senior executives of major charitable trusts in the 

 UK and Europe; representatives from prominent charities and 

 philanthropic trusts; FairPensions members; representatives from UK 

 pension funds, asset management and regulatory authorities; and 

 representatives from the university sector and faith communities.  The 

 working title for the lecture is: "A Call to Action for Civil Society: 

 Harnessing Capital Markets for a Sustainable World".   

 

2.6 The lecture will conclude with a reception in the Old Library, followed by 

a private dinner hosted by the City of London Corporation. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 24



3.0 Media Work 

 

3.1 Media work since the last committee meeting has been extensive, with 

 good coverage in both social and mainstream media. The key event was 

 David Weir receiving the Freedom of the City of London in honour of the 

 launch of the City Sporting Chance grants programme which rebranded 

 your existing Accessible Sports programme and which generated 

 coverage as follows: 

 

• ITV 

o A substantial broadcast piece on London Tonight which included 

interviews with David Weir and the Chairman of the Policy & 

Resources Committee; 

o Three separate pieces for ITV online – all included name checks for 

the City, City Bridge Trust and the accessible sport grant 

programme. 

  

• BBC  

o An online piece which included a name check for the City, City 
Bridge Trust and the Chairman’s quote 

  
• The Mirror  

o An interview piece with David which mentioned the Freedom, the 

City, CBT and the grants programme. 
 

• Daily Mail  

o An interview piece with David which included a mention and 

photograph of the Freedom. 
 

• Evening Standard 
o A print piece focused on the Freedom; 

o An online piece which mentions the launch of the £1m sports grant 

programme by the City Bridge Trust. 

 

• The Independent  

 

• City AM 

 

• Various local, regional and online outlets such as: 

o Politicus 

o London24  

o East London Advertiser  

o YourLocalGuardian 

o EveningNews24 

o Londonist 

 

3.2 There has also been some local media coverage of grants made by your 

 Committee, including the grant to Spice Innovations to develop the 

 London Time Credits model of volunteering.  

Page 25



 

3.3 Lord Mayor Roger Gifford focused on philanthropy in his City AM  column 

 on 11th December. The piece referenced the Beacon Awards, the 

 City of London Corporation's charity The City Bridge Trust, and the City 

 Philanthropy initiative.  The Lord Mayor was also interviewed on Radio 

 Four, Radio Five and BBC London TV. 

 

3.4 Some of the best coverage:  
 
 http://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-england-london-20574907 
 
 http://www.itv.com/news/london/update/2012-12-03/paralympics-star-david-
 weir-gets-another-honour/ 
 
 http://www.cityam.com/the-capitalist/paralympian-david-weir-given-freedom-
 the-city-london    
 
 http://www.cityam.com/forum/christmas-the-ideal-time-revive-the-city-s-
 tradition-charitable-giving 

   

 

 Social Media 
 

3.5 At your last meeting, when City Bridge Trust’s communications plan was 
 discussed, a Member suggested making better use of social media to  

 reach and influence a wider audience.  Several members of the team 
 have now been trained in Twitter usage. Martin Hall, Sandra 

 Davidson, Tim Wilson and Clare Thomas have all started to ‘tweet’, 

 focussing on ‘general’ City Bridge Trust news, Growing Localities, social 

 investment and overall funding/grant-making issues. 
 

3.6 Social media has been a particular success: one of the tweets sent 

 about the David Weir freedom was re-tweeted 9 times, including by 

 David to his 25k followers, and then again by some of them, 

 resulting in City Bridge Trust itself  reaching at least 31,147 people on 

 Twitter. There were over 50 tweets talking about the story in general.  

 

 Growing Localities 

 

3.7 Your external press agency Champollion has been working to secure 
 coverage for your £1m  horticultural work-training grants funded under 

 your ‘Growing Localities’ programme. Champollion is currently working 

 with Time Out which is planning to publish a piece on ‘insect hotels’,

 including the key  messaging about  horticultural grants, in the next few 

 weeks. 

 

3.8 Your officers Sandra Davidson and Clare Thomas, and Champollion, ran a 

 training session with the horticultural grantees. Many of the 

 organisations are interested in securing local coverage for the grant. 

Page 26



 Champollion has developed a draft press  release and will work with 

 grantees in the new year to secure local media  pieces which will, of 

 course, acknowledge your support. 

 

 

4.0 Association of Charitable Foundations 
 

4.1 Your officer Tim Wilson has been elected to the Board of ACF and 

attended his first trustee meeting on 11th December.  City Bridge Trust 

has a long-standing involvement in the governance of ACF, and has been 

a regular and high-profile contributor to the organisation’s annual 

conference. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 

Clare Thomas, Chief Grants Officer 
020 7332 3711 

Clare.Thomas@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
Report written: 20th December 2012  

Page 27



Page 28

This page is intentionally left blank



  THE CITY BRIDGE TRUST  

 

Professional Development Events, Conferences and Seminars  
Attended 14th November to 16th December 2012 

 
Date 
 

Organisation Type of Event City of London’s 
Representative 

Location/ 
Borough 

Summary Comments 
 

14.11.12 Association of 
Charitable 
Foundations  

Training Jemma Grieve 
Combes, Grants 
Officer; Rebecca 
Jacobi, Grants 
Administrator 

Camden Specialist training for funders on reading 
applicant’s accounts. 

05.12.12 City Bridge Trust Seminar Chief Grants 
Officer; 
Sandra Davidson, 
Grants Officer, 
Rebecca Jacobi; 
Grants 
Administrator;  
Joan Millbank, 
Consultant 

Guildhall A seminar for the recipients of 
Horticultural Work Training grants. 
(please see Chief Grants Officer’s 
Progress Report for more details). 

14.11.12 Spare Tyre 
Theatre 

Monitoring 
Visit 

Ciaran Rafferty, 
Principal Grants 
Officer 
accompanied by 
the Chief 
Commoner 

Oval, SE1 The Chief Commoner accompanied your 
officer on a monitoring visit to this 
organisation, the report of which is 
elsewhere in these papers. 

15.11.12 Paul Hamlyn 
Foundation 

Seminar Tim Wilson, 
Principal Grants 
Officer 

Islington A seminar for officers from leading grant-
making Trusts with an interest in 
improving their use of grantee data. 
 

27.11.12 Living Streets Monitoring 
Visit 

Ciaran Rafferty, 
Principal Grants 
Officer 
accompanied by 
Alderman Gowman 

Tower Hamlets Alderman Gowman accompanied your 
officer on a monitoring visit to this 
organisation. 

P
age 29



30.11.12 National Autistic 
Society 

Assessment 
Visit 

Jenny Field, Deputy 
Chief Grants Officer 
accompanied by 
Jeremy Mayhew 

City Road, EC1 Mr Mayhew accompanied your officer on 
this monitoring visit. 

30.11.12 Disabled People’s 
Contact 

Monitoring 
Visit 

Tim Wilson, 
Principal Grants 
Officer 
accompanied by Mr 
Seaton 

Greenwich Mr Seaton accompanied your officer on 
this monitoring visit. 

04.12.12 Community Links 
Bromley 

Funding Fair John Merivale, 
Grants Officer 

Bromley A presentation on how to make good 
applications, alongside officers from HLF, 
Community Fund, Catalyst and Bromley 
Arts.  Attended by approx. 40 local group 
reps. – appreciative feedback.  

04.12.12 Green Alliance Report launch John Merivale, 
Grants Officer 

Westminster ‘Towering Ambitions’ is a project to 
transform high rise housing into 
sustainable homes. The launch of a 
report and toolkit was accompanied by 
presentations from a panel including 
Anne Power, Professor of social policy 
and head of LSE housing and 
communities. 

11.12.12 New Bridge 
Foundation 

Monitoring 
Visit 

Ciaran Rafferty, 
Principal Grants 
Officer 
accompanied by 
Mrs Littlechild 

Westminster Mrs Littlechild accompanied your officer 
on this monitoring visit, the report of 
which is elsewhere in these papers. 

13.12.12 Association of 
Charitable 
Foundations 

Seminar Tim Wilson, 
Principal Grants 
Officer 

Camden A meeting of grant-making Trusts 
working on a new programme called 
‘Inspiring Impact’ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 30



General Events and Receptions  
Attended 14th November to 16th December 2012 

 
Date Organisation Type of Event City of London’s 

Representative 
Location/ 
Borough 

Summary Comments 
  

18.12.12 Changing Faces Monitoring Visit John Merivale, 
Grants Officer, with 
Deputy Joyce Nash 
and Deputy 
Chairman Wendy 
Mead 

Westminster These two CBT Committee Members 
accompanied your officer on a visit to this 
organisation which does excellent 
therapeutic work for people affected by 
disfigurements. 

14.11.12 Prisoners Abroad Annual 
Reception 

The Chairman;  
Several Members; 
Chief Grants Officer 

Foreign and 
Commonwealth 
Office,  
London SW1 

An annual reception to thank their 
funders; hosted by the Foreign and 
Commonwealth Office. 

16.11.12 Rambert Dance Topping Out 
Ceremony 

The Chairman South Bank, 
Upper Ground, 
London SE1 

CBT has helped Rambert Dance with a 
grant for access facilities in their new 
Headquarters behind the Royal Festival 
Hall.  The Chairman was a guest of 
honour at the topping out ceremony. 

19.11.12 The Reading 
Agency 

10th Birthday 
Celebration 

Chief Grants Officer The British 
Library 

An opportunity for the Reading Agency to 
say thank you to their funders and to 
share the highlights of their 
achievements and their vision for the 
future. 

22.11.12 Helen Hamlyn 
Trust 

Nurturing 
Innovation – 
The first 10 
Years of the 
Trust 

Chief Grants Officer London SW3 An evening at Helen Hamlyn’s home, 
celebrating the first ten years of the Trust 
and introducing funders to the people 
who have made the projects supported 
by the Trust such a success. 

23.11.12 Cabinet Office Launch Tim Wilson, 
Principal Grants 
Officer 

Admiralty 
House, 
Whitehall 

The launch of Government’s new £20m 
Social Outcomes Fund to support 
organisations seeking social investment 
where their work will benefit more than 
one Department. Francis Maude MP and 
Nick Hurd MP both spoke. 
 

P
age 31



26.11.12 Garden Organic Reception Sandra Davidson, 
Grants Officer 

Carshalton 
Boys Sports 
College 

A reception held by Garden Organic and 
the “Food Growing in Schools” Taskforce, 
celebrating a successful food growing 
project at Carshalton.  HRH The Prince of 
Wales and Jamie Oliver attended and 
spoke of the good school food experience 
they had seen and on how to create 
positive change in food education.  

28.11.12 Association of 
Chief Executives 
of Voluntary 
Organisations 
(ACEVO) 

Annual Dinner Chief Grants Officer The Grange 
Tower Bridge 
Hotel, E1 

Annual Dinner and also ACEVO’s first 
Fellowship Awards, presented by 
Baroness Grey-Thompson, President of 
the Leadership 20:20 Commission. 

30.11.12 Unicorn Theatre Press Night The Chairman Unicorn 
Theatre, 
London SE1 

Following our support for the Unicorn 
Theatre, the Chairman attended the 
opening night of their new production of 
the Prince & the Pauper. 

04.12.12. Queen Elizabeth 
Diamond Jubilee 
Trust 

Dinner The Chairman Bank of 
England, EC2 

To salute CBT’s extra Diamond Jubilee 
Grants, the Rt Hon Sir John Major, 
Chairman of the Queen Elizabeth 
Diamond Jubilee Trust, gave a dinner at 
the Bank of England, to which the 
Chairman was invited. 

04.12.12 Forum for the 
Future 

End of Year 
Get-Together 

Chief Grants Officer Duke’s Road, 
London WC1 

A get-together to celebrate Forum for the 
Future’s sustainability achievements over 
the last 12 months and look ahead to 
2013. 

14.11.12 Celebrate the 
City 

Reception Ciaran Rafferty, 
Principal Grants 
Officer 

St Lawrence 
Jewry, 
Gresham St 

Reception to say thank you to 
participants and supporters of the 2012 
Celebrate the City event. 

05.12.12. Barbican Centre Award 
Ceremony 

The Chairman Barbican 
Concert Hall 

At a ceremony in Barbican Concert Hall 
for the presentation of the Queen’s medal 
for Music, the Chairman, amongst others, 
was presented to Her Majesty in 
recognition of CBT support for musical 
outreach work to young people. 

P
age 32



06.12.12. Islington Giving Festive 
Reception 

Sandra Davidson, 
Grants Officer 

Hilton Hotel, 
Islington, N1 

An informal reception to celebrate the 
successes of the past year.  Tom Jupp, 
the Chairman of Islington Giving, shared 
some of the year’s highlights.  

06.12.12. City of London 
Corporation 

Gala Opening Chief Grants Officer The Barbican 
Centre 

Gala Opening of the new Barbican 
Cinemas 2 & 3 on Beech Street; their 
first new venue for 30 years. 

14.11.12 Synergy Theatre 
Company 

Performance Ciaran Rafferty, 
Principal Grants 
Officer 

Unicorn 
Theatre, SE1  

An inspiring piece of theatre with and for 
young people from an organisation you 
are funding and which supports ex-
offenders to develop theatre skills. 

 

P
age 33



P
age 34

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Committee(s): Date(s): 

The City Bridge Trust 10th January 2013 

 

Subject: 

Grant Recommendations - Introductory Paper 

Public 

 

Report of: 

Chief Grants Officer 

For Decision 

 

Ward (if appropriate): N/A 

 

Summary  
 

This report deals with recommendations relating to applications 

received on your current grants programmes.  

A total of 52 applications will be dealt with at this meeting.  Of 

these, one is a strategic initiative, 20 are recommended for a 

grant, 16 are recommended for rejection, and 10 have been 

withdrawn.  Five grants are also noted as having been 

recommended under delegated authority.  The total 

recommended sum is £1,910,870. 

Recommendations 

That you: 

a)  note the contents of the report 
b)  consider the individual grant recommendations in relation to 

the applications set out in the summary schedule and other papers 

Main Report  

1.0 Introduction 
 

1.1 This paper summarises the action taken on grant applications 

received, and tracks the spend on your grant making at each 

Committee meeting.  Sections 2 to 3 deal with Working with 

Londoners applications, Strategic Initiatives and Eco-audits and 

section 4 deals separately with Growing Localities applications.  

Further sections provide summary schedules of all current grants 

programmes.  
  
1.2 Your policy guidance is presented in a loose-leaf folder entitled 

“Members’ Handbook”.  It includes the priorities and exclusions that 

were ratified for the Trust by the Court of Common Council, in April 

2008, following your Quinquennial Review.  It is also available on 

the intranet. 

Agenda Item 8a

Page 35



2.0 Working with Londoners  
 

2.1 In the period 1st January to 31st March 2012, 125 applications were 

received.  Of these, one has been withdrawn, leaving none pending. 

 

  Table 1: Applications received 1st Jan – 31st March 2012 

 
  Committee Date 

  

Feb 

12 

Mar 

12 

Apr 

12 

May 

12 

Jun 

12 

Jul 

12 

Sep 

12 

Oct 

12 

Nov 

12 

Jan 

13 

Total 

Strategic 

Initiatives 

1                   1 

Grants / Recs  1 3 9 11 10 6 7 0 1   48 

Delegated Gr       3   2 2       7 

Rejs/Recs   16 20 9 9   3 0 1   58 

Withdrawn    2 2 2   1 1 1   1 10 

Lapsed         1           1 

Pending  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 0 0 

TOTAL  2 21 31 25 20 9 13 1 2 1 125 

 

 

2.2 In the period 1st April to 30th June 2012, 131 applications were 
received.  Of these, two are recommended for a grant today, one 

has been recommended for a grant under delegated authority and 

five have been withdrawn, leaving two pending.  It is anticipated 

that these will be brought to you at your February 2013 meeting. 

 
 Table 2: Applications received 1st April – 30th June 2012 

   
  Committee Date 

  

Apr 

12 

May 

12 

Jun 

12 

July 

12 

Sep 

12 

Oct 

12 

Nov 

12 

Jan 

13 

Total 

Strategic 

Initiatives 

6 1             7 

Grants / Recs      1 4 17 9 1 2 34 

Delegated Gr       2 9 2 2 1 16 

Rejs/Recs   11 9 12 21 2 3   58 

Withdrawn        1 5 3   5 14 

Lapsed                 0 

Pending  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 2 2 

TOTAL  6 12 10 19 52 16 6 10 131 

 

 

2.3 In the period 1st July 2012 to 30th September 2012, 101 applications 

were received.  Of these, 12 are recommended for a grant today, 

one has been recommended for a grant under delegated authority, 

four are recommended for rejection and three have been 

withdrawn, leaving 30 pending. 

Page 36



Table 3: Applications received 1st July – 31st September 2012 

 

  

Committee Date 

Jul 12 Sep 12 Oct 12 Nov 12 Jan 13 Total 

Strategic Initiatives 1 1       2 

Grants / Recs    1 4 8 12 25 

Delegated Gr   2     1 3 

Rejs/Recs   6 20 3 4 33 

Withdrawn    2 1 2 3 8 

Lapsed           0 

Pending  N/A N/A N/A N/A 30 30 

TOTAL  1 12 25 13 50 101 

 

 

2.4 In the period since 1st October 2012, 93 applications have been 

received.  Of these, two are recommended for a grant today, two 

have been recommended for a grant under delegated authority, 12 

are recommended for rejection and one is a strategic initiative to be 

considered for a grant today, leaving 66 pending.  

 
Table 4: Applications received since 1st October 2012 

 

  

Committee Date 

Oct 12 Nov 12 Jan 13 Total 

Strategic Initiatives 2 4 1 7 

Grants / Recs  1 1 2 4 

Delegated Gr 1 1 2 4 

Rejs/Recs     12 12 

Withdrawn        0 

Lapsed       0 

Pending  N/A N/A 66 66 

TOTAL  4 6 83 93 

 

 

3.0 Strategic Initiatives 

 

3.1 There is one new Strategic Initiative to be considered today.  For 

your information, table 5 also shows those already agreed at earlier 

meetings.  

Page 37



Table 5: Strategic Initiatives 2012/13  

 
Strategic Initiatives Committee 

date 

£ 

Already agreed in advance for this financial year:     

Quinquennial Review Horizon Scanning 16/02/2012 50,000 

Social Investment Specialist Role 15/03/2012 50,000 

(The above were entered in the budget record in April 2012)     

Learning & Sharing Strategy 26/04/2012 124,000 

Reading Agency 26/04/2012 50,000 

Beacon Award 26/04/2012 32,500 

Greening Third Sector 26/04/2012 75,000 

Lord Mayor's Show 31/05/2012 24,110 

The Lord Mayor's Continuum (pending conditions) 18/07/2012 65,000 

Literary initiative in Islington 27/09/2012 72,300 

London Time Credits 31/10/2012 164,500 

Ladder for London - Evening Standard campaign for more 

apprenticeships in London. 31/10/2012 140,000 

City Philanthropy 29/11/2012 160,000 

The Funding Network 29/11/2012 30,000 

Young Philanthropy 29/11/2012 41,000 

NCVO/VE Merger 29/11/2012 50,000 

For this meeting:     

The Giving Gain 10/01/2013 152,000 

  Total 1,280,410 

      

Sum available    1,347,500 

Balance remaining   67,090 

 
3.2 Greening the Third Sector: At your April meeting you agreed an 

allocation of £75,000 for 2012-13 towards the Eco-Audit initiative 
which is published in your Working with Londoners guidelines.  

Table 6 shows this year’s commitments to date. 

 

Table 6: Eco-Audits agreed 2012-13  

 
Organisation Committee 

date 

Days 

agreed 

£ 

agreed 

Penrose 31/05/12 9.0 3,375 

Voluntary Action Islington (additional half day 

required) 18/07/12 0.5 188 

HAVCO 27/09/12 6.0 2,250 

Parchmore  29/11/12 6.0 2,250 

Geddes Place 10/01/13 6.0 2,250 

Total:     10,313 

Budget allowed      75,000 

Balance remaining     64,688 

 

Page 38



4.0 Growing Localities 

 

4.1 In October 2011, you approved the priorities for your new 

programme, ‘Growing Localities’, a one-off grants programme in 

celebration of HM The Queen’s Diamond Jubilee in 2012.  Policy and 

Resources Committee agreed to allocate an additional £2,000,000 

against your 2012/13 grants budget for this programme.  The 

programme was launched in July 2012 and closed to new 

applications on 8th October 2012.      

 

4.2 A total of 49 applications have been received under the Growing 

Localities programme.  Of these, four are recommended for a grant 

today, one has been recommended for a grant under delegated 

authority, and one has been withdrawn, leaving 11 pending.   

 

4.3  The four applications recommended for a grant at this meeting are 

outlined in the summary schedule. 
 

Table 7: Growing Localities applications received  

 

  

Committee Date 

Sep 12 Oct 12 Nov 12 Jan 13 Total 

Grants / Recs  3 11 2 4 20 

Rejs/Recs 7 3 3   13 

Delegated Gr     1 1 2 

Withdrawn  2     1 3 

Lapsed         0 

Pending  N/A N/A N/A 11 11 

TOTAL  12 14 6 17 49 

 

5.0 Summary 

 

5.1 From Table 8 you will see that a total of 52 applications will be dealt 
with at this meeting. The total recommended sum is £1,910,870. 

Page 39



Table 8: Applications at this meeting – Summary  

 
Status Number 

Strategic Initiatives 1 

Working with Londoners grants recommended 16 

Working with Londoners grants delegated authority 4 

Working with Londoners grants rejections recommended 16 

Working with Londoners grants withdrawn 9 

Working with Londoners grants lapsed 0 

Growing Localities grants recommended 4 

Growing Localities grants delegated authority 1 

Growing Localities grants rejections recommended 0 

Growing Localities grants withdrawn 1 

Growing Localities grants lapsed 0 

    

Total applications 52 

    

Working with Londoners grants recommended total £1,555,280 

Working with Londoners strategic initiatives £152,000 

Growing Localities grants recommended total £203,590 

    

Total recommendations £1,910,870 

 
5.2 From Table 9 you will see the relative distribution of grants this 

financial year, across your programme areas. 
 

Table 9: Grants in 2012-13 – by Programme  
 

Programme Area Year to date This meeting Total 

Working with Londoners £ £ £ 

Accessible London 1,021,555 170,000 1,191,555 

Bridging Communities 1,748,140 187,000 1,935,140 

Improving Mental Health 1,385,900 39,000 1,424,900 

London's Environment 889,290 24,950 914,240 

Older Londoners 585,100 398,550 983,650 

Positive Transitions 1,376,300 465,780 1,842,080 

Strengthening Third Sector 1,677,900 150,000 1,827,900 

Exceptional Grants 120,000 120,000 240,000 

Strategic Initiatives 1,128,410 152,000 1,280,410 

Additional Grants 398,000 0 398,000 

Growing Localities     0 

Growing and Greening 234,500 203,590 438,090 

Horticultural Work Training 1,010,630 0 1,010,630 

      0 

Total £11,575,725 £1,910,870 £13,486,595 

 

6.0 Write-Backs & Revocations 
 

6.1 Table 10 provides a list of Working with Londoners write-backs and 

revocations approved under delegated authority for this meeting 
and during the year since 1st April 2012, for your information. 

Page 40



 

Table 10: Working with Londoners Write-backs and 

Revocations 2012/13  
 

 2012/13 £ 

Haringey Carers' Centre 15,000  

St Michael & All Angels 5,910  

Three Wings Trust 21,000  

Camden BME Alliance 30,000 

Tony Blair Faith Foundation 8,500 

For this meeting:  

St Mark's Church, Kensal Rise 7,400  

Apex Charitable Trust Limited 25,000 

Total: £112,810 

 

7.0 Summary of Spend 2012-13 

 

7.1 Table 11 (at the end of this paper) summarises the original budgets 

for 2012-13, including your Working with Londoners and Growing 
Localities programmes, and the balance of the additional budget 

approved by Policy & Resources Committee in July 2010. 
 

7.2 This table also shows the implications of write-backs of £112,810 

and Strategic Initiatives of £1,280,410 for 2012/13 to date 

(including those agreed prior to today’s meeting to be charged 

against this financial year and today’s recommendation of 

£152,000) and today’s grant recommendations of £1,555,280 under 

Working with Londoners and £203,590 under Growing Localities. 

 
7.3 A sum of £3,572,935 remains unspent on your Working with 

Londoners grants budget for 2012/13.  Unusually, you do not have 

a meeting in March, therefore proposals to carry forward any 

underspend into your grants budget for 2013/14 will be brought to 

your February 2013 meeting. 

 

Recommendations: 
 

That you 

 

a)  note the contents of the report, 

 

b)  consider the individual grant recommendations in relation to the 

applications set out in the summary schedule and other papers. 

 
Contact:  

Jemma Grieve Combes, Grants Officer - 020 7332 3174  

jemma.grievecombes@cityoflondon.gov.uk     
Report written: 20/12/2012 

Page 41



Table 11: Grants to date 2012/13 

  Working with Londoners Growing Localities Additional Budget P&R July 2010 

  Approved 

/Rec Sum 

Budget 

Remaining 

Approved Budget Approved /Rec 

Sum 

Budget 

Remaining 

  £ £     £   

Original Grants Budget for 2012/13   14,950,000    2,000,000   

  

Carry forward from previous years    150,000      398,000 

              

Write-Backs & Revocations   112,810          

see Table 7             

Total Budgets Available   15,212,810    2,000,000  0  398,000  

              

Strategic Initiatives 1,280,410  13,932,400          

see Table 4             

              

Applications at Committee             

April 2012 1,100,220  12,832,180    2,000,000    398,000 

May 2012 1,044,400  11,787,780    2,000,000  27,800 370,200 

June 2012 914,500  10,873,280    2,000,000    370,200 

July 2012 945,985  9,927,295    2,000,000    370,200 

September 2012 2,204,950  7,722,345  132,100 1,867,900    370,200 

October 2012 1,620,900  6,101,445  1,010,630 857,270    370,200 

November 2012 973,230  5,128,215  102,400 754,870  370,200 0 

January 2013 1,555,280  3,572,935  203,590 551,280    0 

              

Sub-Total for 2012/13 11,639,875    1,448,720    398,000    

              

Total Remaining for 2012/13   3,572,935    551,280    0  

 

P
age 42



 THE CITY BRIDGE TRUST 

 The City Bridge Trust Committee - 10 January 2013 

 Summary of Grant Recommendations 

 Annex Ref Requested Recommended Page 

 No. No. Organisation Amount Amount No. 

 Accessible London 

1 11377 Cricket for Change £124,800 £120,000  45 

2 11398 National Council for £50,000 £50,000  55 

 Voluntary 

 Organisations 

 Total Accessible London £174,800 £170,000 

 

 Bridging Communities 

3 11382 Hackney Quest £176,163 £120,000  65 

4 11460 Age UK London £73,068 £67,000  75 

 Total Bridging Communities £249,231 £187,000 

 

 Exceptional Grants 

5 11318 Human Trafficking £120,000 £120,000  85 

 Foundation 

 Total Exceptional Grants £120,000 £120,000 

 

 Growing Localities 

6 11394 Bankside Open Spaces £49,980 £49,980  96 
 Trust (BOST) 

7 11415 London Wildlife Trust £49,660 £43,770 105 

8 11338 St Luke's Trust £49,920 £49,920 114 

9 11434 Sustain (Alliance for £49,928 £49,920 124 

 Better Food and 

 Farming) 

 Total Growing Localities £199,488 £193,590 

 

 Improving Londoners' Mental Health 

10 11403 Rethink Mental Illness £39,934 £39,000 134 

 Total Improving Londoners' Mental Health £39,934 £39,000 

 

 Older Londoners 

11 11364 Alzheimer's Society £133,342 £120,000 144 

12 11276 Camden Carers Centre £96,205 £96,000 155 

Agenda Item 8b

Page 43



 THE CITY BRIDGE TRUST 

 The City Bridge Trust Committee - 10 January 2013 

 Summary of Grant Recommendations 

 Annex Ref Requested Recommended Page 

 No. No. Organisation Amount Amount No. 

13 11286 Eye Music Trust £87,556 £87,500 165 

14 11311 Hackney Caribbean £37,775 £53,150 175 

 Elderly Organisation 

 Total Older Londoners £354,878 £356,650 

 

 Positive Transitions to Independent Living 

15 11252 National Autistic £97,000 £81,000 186 

 Society 

16 11345 Richmond Advice and £71,880 £71,880 197 

 Information on 

 Disability (RAID) 

17 11393 Sense £143,725 £71,400 207 

18 11296 Charlie Chaplin £135,101 £126,600 218 
 Adventure Playground 

19 11319 Khulisa £90,000 £90,000 229 

 Total Positive Transitions to Independent £537,706 £440,880 

Living 

 

 Strengthening the Third Sector 

20 11337 Hammersmith & £150,000 £150,000 239 

 Fulham Volunteer 

 Centre 

 Total Strengthening the Third Sector £150,000 £150,000 

 

 Strategic Initiatives 

21 11592 City Bridge Trust £152,000 £152,000 249 

 Total Strategic Initiatives £152,000 £152,000 

 

 

 Grand Totals £1,978,037 £1,809,120 

Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



Page 158



Page 159



Page 160



Page 161



Page 162



Page 163



Page 164



Page 165



Page 166



Page 167



Page 168



Page 169



Page 170



Page 171



Page 172



Page 173



Page 174



Page 175



Page 176



Page 177



Page 178



Page 179



Page 180



Page 181



Page 182



Page 183



Page 184



Page 185



Page 186



Page 187



Page 188



Page 189



Page 190



Page 191



Page 192



Page 193



Page 194



Page 195



Page 196



Page 197



Page 198



Page 199



Page 200



Page 201



Page 202



Page 203



Page 204



Page 205



Page 206



Page 207



Page 208



Page 209



Page 210



Page 211



Page 212



Page 213



Page 214



Page 215



Page 216



Page 217



Page 218



Page 219



Page 220



Page 221



Page 222



Page 223



Page 224



Page 225



Page 226



Page 227



Page 228



Page 229



Page 230



Page 231



Page 232



Page 233



Page 234



Page 235



Page 236



Page 237



Page 238



Page 239



Page 240



Page 241



Page 242



Page 243



Page 244



Page 245



Page 246



Page 247



Page 248



Page 249



Page 250



Page 251



Page 252



Page 253



Page 254

This page is intentionally left blank



Annex A 

 

Budget for Philanthropy Exhibition       

      

Budget Heading   £    

      

Exhibition 2D &  3D Design Fees   15,000   

 

Research and copyediting     4,000  

 

SUB-TOTAL FEES:  19,000 

     

PRODUCTION 

 

  AV  software ( Digital Map Interactive)       7,000       

To include:  research and development,  production, animations and copyrights  

      

AV Hardware and instillation)    12,000       

      

Display panel system , cases  and other set works   40,000 

 (inc. walls, case internals, flooring etc)    

       

Electrics, Lighting Consumables, security    7,000    

  

Graphic Production   11,000    

      

(including Graphic production, illustrator and copyrights: design fee covered in 1 above)               

      

Object Mounts and frames: conservation expenses     2,750    

      

SUB-TOTAL PRODUCTION:    79,750 

     

OTHER 

 

  Associated public events eg  lectures    12,000      

      

  Marketing     

  (include print leaflet, cost of advertising, press view)   15,600     

        

  Launch Event      7,500   

 

  Invigilation during public hours      5,000 

 

SUB-TOTAL, OTHER:    40,100  

     

Sub-Total  138,850 

      

Contingency (10%)    13,885    

      

TOTAL  152,735 

     

Page 255



Page 256

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Committee(s): Date(s): 

The City Bridge Trust 10th January 2013 

 

Subject: 

Applications recommended for rejection 

Public 

 

Report of: 

Chief Grants Officer 

For Decision 

 

 
Summary  

 
This report and the accompanying schedule outlines a total of 16 

grant applications that, for the reason(s) identified, are 

recommended for rejection. 
 

Recommendation 

 

That the grant applications detailed in the accompanying 

schedules be rejected. 
 

Main Report 

1. There are a total of 16 applications recommended for 

rejection at this meeting – all under your Working with 

Londoners programme. They are listed within categories in 

the accompanying schedules. In each case the “purpose” 

that is used to describe the application is that provided by 

the applicant organisation. All the recommendations are 

based on criteria set out in your Policy Guidance. 
 

2. Copies of these application forms are available to view in 

the Members’ Reading Room. If any Committee Member 

wishes to query any of the recommendations, this can 

either be done at the meeting, in which case the decision 

may be deferred while full details are provided to the 

Member concerned, or by contacting the Trust office in 

advance of the meeting so that an explanation can be 

provided prior to or at the meeting.  

 
 
Contact: 

Stewart Goshawk, Principal Grants Officer 

020 7332 3712   stewart.goshawk@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

Report written: 21/12/12 

Agenda Item 8c

Page 257



Page 258

This page is intentionally left blank



Bridging Communities

!!"#$

%&'()*+,-./(.
0)12345676

8)5&)9,:523,5,(2/:,5&)425);523,
<&&:,-/2,-5&)1:4,4523<25*,5);;,:5<4
*,++5<45:,9,(1,5<(-5&<=/2<+5&)42
=,:2</(/(.52)523,5):.<(/4<2/)(>

%5(,*5):.<(/4<2/)(?54,,'/(.5<59,:@
+<:.,5.:<(25*3/&35/45()25@)1:5=)+/&@>

ABBC?DED FG

H,42I/(42,:

!!""D

J:,(25K+<@
%44)&/<2/)(

8)5/I=:)9,5&)II1(/2@5:,+<2/)(4
L@5L:/(./(.52).,23,:5.:)1=45);
<-1+245<(-5&3/+-:,(?5/(&+1-/(.
23)4,5*/2354=,&/<+5(,,-452)
<&3/,9,5=)4/2/9,5/(-/9/-1<+5<(-
&)++,&2/9,5)12&)I,4

83/45<==+/&<2/)(54,,'45;1(-/(.52)*<:-4
23,5):.<(/4<2/)(M45.,(,:<+5<&2/9/2/,4
:<23,:523<(5<54=,&/;/&5ML:/-./(.
&)II1(/2/,4M5=:)N,&2>

A!B$?DC$ FG

J:,(2

!!"OE

6:,4&,(25H):'5"%++

83,5I</(5)LN,&2/9,5);523/45=:)N,&2
/452)5=:,=<:,5@)1(.5=,)=+,52)5I,,2
23,5&3<++,(.,45);5<-)+,4&,(&,5<(-
<-1+23))-523:)1.35<5&)):-/(<2,-?
=:).:,44/9,54,:/,45);5<&2/9/2/,45<(-
,P=,:/,(&,45*3/&353,+=523,

%(5/(&)I=+,2,5<==+/&<2/)(5*/235()
41==):2/(.5-)&1I,(2<2/)(5*3<24),9,:?
I<'/(.5<5;1++5<44,44I,(25/I=)44/L+,>

A"O?OOO FG

!"#$%

&'()*+,)-+.*

/0'1.,"

$

!"),.*$#.'$

!"2.33"*4)-+.*$#.'$!"5"2-+.*

63.0*-$

!"70",-"4

8')*-,$&##+2"'

%$6'")

9:;$<=9>$?!=@8;$9!AB9
9C"$<+-D$?'+4("$9'0,-$<.33+--""$E$FG$H)*0)'D$IGFG

B033)'D$.#$!"2.33"*4)-+.*,$#.'$!"5"2-+.*$E$J.'K+*($L+-C$M.*4.*"',$)*4$8'.L+*($M.2)N+-+",

P
age 259



!!"""

0QR5S2-

83,54,2T1=5<(-5/I=+,I,(2<2/)(
=3<4,5);5<5=<:2(,:43/=TL<4,-
.)9,:(<(&,5=:)N,&252)5I<(<.,
4,:9/&,452)5I,,25+)&<++@5/-,(2/;/,-
(,,-45)(5R<&'(,@M45R<..,:42)(
H,425<(-5U/(.4+<(-5V42<2,4>

83/45<==+/&<2/)(54,,'45;1(-/(.52)*<:-4
23,5&)4245);52,(<(25/(9)+9,I,(25T5+)&<+
&)II1(/2@5I<(<.,I,(254&3,I,45T
*3/&35-),45()2541;;/&/,(2+@5<--:,44523,
&:/2,:/<5);5@)1:5ML:/-./(.5&)II1(/2/,4M
=:).:<II,>

A!$?"$O FG

R<&'(,@

Total Bridging Communities (4 items) £404,982

Improving Londoners' Mental Health

!!CW$

%-;<I

8)5=:)9/-,541==):252)5;<I/+/,4
<;;,&2,-5L@5-1<+5-/<.()4/45*3,:,5<
;<I/+@5I,IL,:5/453)I,+,44?
2:<(4/,(25):54+,,=/(.5:)1.3>

83/45<==+/&<2/)(54,,'45;1(-/(.5;):5*):'
2)541==):2523,5;<I/+/,45);53)I,+,44
-:1.514,:45T5*3/&35;<++45)124/-,5@)1:
&:/2,:/<>

A!EE?WW" FG

R<&'(,@

!!""B

%;:/&<(5R,:/2<.,
<(-5V-1&<2/)(<+
6,(2:,

8<&'+/(.5I,(2<+53,<+235/441,45/(
&3/+-:,(5X<.,45E52)5!!Y5Z5;<I/+/,4
23:)1.35,-1&<2/)(<+5<&2/9/2/,4?
/(;):I<2/)(5Z5<-9/&,5+,<-/(.52)
,<:+@5/(2,:9,(2/)(5/(5I,(2<+53,<+23
/441,45<;;,&2/(.523,/:5+,<:(/(.
N)1:(,@>

83,5;)&145);523/45<==+/&<2/)(5/45.,(,:<+
=:,9,(2/)(5);5I,(2<+5/++53,<+235<(-523/4
;<++45)124/-,5@)1:5&1::,(25;1(-/(.
=:/):/2/,4>

A$W?OBW 8H

H<+23<I
[):,42

!!"#"

J,(&35Q12:,<&3

8)5/(&:,<4,523,5,;;,&2/9,(,445);
)1:5<-9/&,?54/.(5=)42/(.?5:,;,::<+
<(-5<-9)&<&@54,:9/&,52)53)I,+,44
&+/,(2452)541==):254,:9/&,4
/(&+1-/(.5I,(2<+53,<+2354,:9/&,4>

83/45<==+/&<2/)(54,,'45;1(-/(.5;):
.,(,:<+541==):25;):53)I,+,445=,)=+,?
*3/&35/45()254=,&/;/&<++@52<:.,22/(.5<(@
);5@)1:5;1(-/(.5&:/2,:/<>

AW#?"OE FG

S,*/43<I

!"#$%

&'()*+,)-+.*

/0'1.,"

$

!"),.*$#.'$

!"2.33"*4)-+.*$#.'$!"5"2-+.*

63.0*-$

!"70",-"4

8')*-,$&##+2"'

%$6'")

P
age 260



!!C"!

R/++/(.-)(5[:,,
F&3))+45S2-

8)5+,44,(5(,/.3L)1:3))-52,(4/)(4?
L@5=:)9/4)(5);5<-9/&,5)(53)14/(.
<(-5<&&,4/L/+/2@52)523,I\
(,/.3L)1:3))-5;))2L<++
,(.<.,I,(2?;,,-/(.5+1(&352)523,
3)I,+,445<(-5<25:/4'5=<:,(24>

%5(,*5):.<(/4<2/)(5<4'/(.5;):5<59,:@
+<:.,541I?5*3/&35/45()25@)1:5=)+/&@>

ADBO?OOO FG

R/++/(.-)(

!!CED

]/;<+58^,-)')
_)&3,4,-5S2-

8)52:</(5K4@&3)+)./424?
K4@&3)23,:<=/4245<(-5],(2<+
R,<+235K:);,4/)(<+45<(-53,+=
&+/,(245=<@5;):523,:<=@5<(-
&)1(4,++/(.5*3,(5;<&/(.
-,=:,44/)(?5<(P/,2@5<(-5)23,:
I,(2<+53,<+235/441,4>

83/45<==+/&<2/)(54,,'45;1(-/(.5;):
&)1:4,5&)4245;):52:</(,,
=4@&3)23,:<=/424?5*3/&35;<++45)124/-,5);
@)1:5;1(-/(.5&:/2,:/<>

A!B?OOO FG

R<&'(,@

!!"WB

])(2,44):/
V-1&<2/)(5;):
%12/4I

F1==):25<5=:)N,&25;):54&3))+5<.,
&3/+-:,(5*3)5<:,51(<L+,52)5<&&,44
23,/:54&3))+/(.?5=)44/L+@5<+:,<-@
,P=,++,-5):5,P&+1-,-?5L,&<14,5);
23,/:54,(4):@5-/;;/&1+2/,4>

83/45<==+/&<2/)(54,,'45;1(-/(.5;):5*3<2
/45,44,(2/<++@54=,&/<+/425<;2,:54&3))+
=:)9/4/)(?5*3/&35-),45()25I,,25@)1:
&:/2,:/<>

AB"?OOO FG

G:,,(*/&3

Total Improving Londoners' Mental Health (6 items) £1,100,321

London's Environment

!!"W"

6<I-,(5<(-
H,42I/(42,:
`,;1.,,58:</(/(.
K<:2(,:43/=
X6ZH`8KY

[1(-45*/++5L,514,-5)(5*):'52)
41==):2523,5,(9/:)(I,(2<+
,-1&<2/)(5)(5*<42,5I/(/I/4<2/)(
<(-5:,&@&+/(.5;):5:,;1.,,45/(
S)(-)(5L):)1.345);56<I-,(5<(-
H,42I/(42,:

83/45:,a1,4254,,'45;1(-/(.5;):5<
=1:=)4,?5=:,9/)14+@5;1(-,-?5*3,:,5<
23:,,5@,<:5.<=53<45()25,P=/:,->

A$E?B$C FG

6<I-,(

!"#$%

&'()*+,)-+.*

/0'1.,"

$

!"),.*$#.'$

!"2.33"*4)-+.*$#.'$!"5"2-+.*

63.0*-$

!"70",-"4

8')*-,$&##+2"'

%$6'")

P
age 261



Total London's Environment (1 item) £59,253

Older Londoners

!!""$

R,:2;):-43/:,
R,<:/(.5%-9/4):@
F,:9/&,

83,563<:/2@5*)1+-5+/',52)5)=,:<2,5<
)(,5@,<:5=/+)25MR,<:/(.5F1==):2
F,:9/&,M54&3,I,52)541==):25=,)=+,
14/(.5bRF53,<:/(.5</-4>

83,5<==+/&<(25):.<(/4<2/)(M45<:,<5);
L,(,;/25/45cR,:2;):-43/:,5<(-
J,-;):-43/:,c5<(-5/25/4523,:,;):,5)124/-,
);5/245+,.<+5:,I/252)5*):'5/(5SJ5V(;/,+->

AB"?EOO FG

Q124/-,
S)(-)(

!!"OB

S/.325[)1(-<2/)(
S2-

F<+<:@5;):5<5;1++52/I,5<-I/(/42:<2):
<(-576854'/++4542<;;5I,IL,:5<(-
:1((/(.5&)424>

%5(,*5):.<(/4<2/)(51(<L+,52)
-,I)(42:<2,523,5(,&,44<:@52:<&'5:,&):-
2)5L,5,+/./L+,5;):5&)(4/-,:<2/)(>

A#O?OOO FG

R)1(4+)*

Total Older Londoners (2 items) £84,900

Positive Transitions to Independent Living

!!"$B

%+)(,5/(5S)(-)(

8)5&)(2:/L12,52)*<:-4523,5&)425);
[<I/+@56)((,&2?5<5=:,9,(2/)(5);
@)1(.5,PT);;,(-,:45L,&)I/(.
3)I,+,44?5:,T);;,(-/(.5<(-
L,&)I/(.5:,T/(&<:&,:<2,-5=:)N,&2>

Q:.<(/4<2/)(5/45=<:25);5<5I<N):5R)14/(.
%44)&/<2/)(5<(-523,:,;):,543)1+-5L,
<L+,52)5;/(-523,5I,<.:,541I5:,a1,42,-
;:)I5/245)*(5:,4)1:&,4>

ABB?$OO 6`

R<&'(,@

!!"$O

d/<4=):<
6)II1(/2@
K:)N,&24

8)5:,&:1/2?59,225<(-52:</(5MJ]V
6)II1(/2@563<I=/)(4M52)5L,&)I,
9)+1(2,,:4?52)59/4/25<(-541==):2523,
+)(,+@?5+,445<L+,5+)&<+5I,IL,:45);5
J]V5&)II1(/2@>

%5:,+<2/9,+@54I<++5):.<(/4<2/)(54,,'/(.5<
9,:@5+<:.,5<*<:-5*3/&35/45()25@)1:
=)+/&@>

AB!E?#OO FG

J<:'/(.5Z
d<.,(3<I

!"#$%

&'()*+,)-+.*

/0'1.,"

$

!"),.*$#.'$

!"2.33"*4)-+.*$#.'$!"5"2-+.*

63.0*-$

!"70",-"4

8')*-,$&##+2"'

%$6'")

P
age 262



!!"!B

KJ65[)1(-<2/)(

8)5:,&:1/25<(-52:</(5<5(,*5:,./)(<+
9)+1(2,,:5&)):-/(<2):?5*3)5*/++
);;,:5+)&<+5/(;):I<2/)(5<(-541==):2
4,:9/&,452)523)4,5<;;,&2,-5L@5KJ6
/(5G:,<2,:5S)(-)(>

%5&3<:/2@5*/235<5(<2/)(<+5:,I/254,,'/(.
<59,:@54I<++541I5;):5/245S)(-)(5*):'?
*3/&35/45()25@)1:5=)+/&@>

A!?$OO FG

Q124/-,
S)(-)(

Total Positive Transitions to Independent Living (3 items) £243,600

!"#$%

&'()*+,)-+.*

/0'1.,"

$

!"),.*$#.'$

!"2.33"*4)-+.*$#.'$!"5"2-+.*

63.0*-$

!"70",-"4

8')*-,$&##+2"'

%$6'")

8')*4$9.-)N,$OFP$+-"3,Q RFSTUVSGWP

P
age 263



P
age 264

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Committee: Date(s): 

The City Bridge Trust 10th January 2013 

 

Subject: 

Withdrawn & Lapsed Applications (Working with 

Londoners and Growing Localities programmes)  

Public 

 

Report of: 

Chief Grants Officer 

For Information 

 

 

Summary  

 

This Report draws your attention to those applications to the Working 

with Londoners and Growing Localities programmes which have been 

subsequently withdrawn by the applicant or lapsed due to additional 

information not forthcoming. 
 

Recommendation 

That you receive this report and note its contents 

 

 

Withdrawn Applications: 
 
 

Organisation      Purpose of Request 

 

City Temple “City Temple must replace its lift, which is 

essential for the accessibility of the 
building. The present lift is at the end of its 

working life.” 
 

This application has been held pending the 

outcome of decisions on building work on 

neighbouring properties. It is likely to be 

some time until this process is finished and 

given the time elapsed since application, 

the organisation has decided to withdraw its 

request. 

 

 

Greater London Forum for 

Older People (The GLF) 

“PROJECT EXTENSION 'To facilitate the pan 

London and local borough engagement and 

voice of minority ethnic older Londoners in 

strategic policy and local service provision'” 
 

This application has been withdrawn and re-

submitted by the parent body (elsewhere in 

your papers today). 

Agenda Item 9a

Page 265



Merton and Lambeth 

Citizens Advice (MLCAB) 

“To set up and run Advice Guiders, a 

project based in community organisations, 

delivered by volunteers from minority 

communities, to provide assisted 

information and support to their 

communities.” 
 

Following a change of leadership, the 

organisation has decided to withdraw its 

application and may re-submit once it has 

completed a strategic review. 

 

 

Southwark Day Centre for 

Asylum Seekers 

“To employ a Volunteers Manager to 

manage, develop and support 60+ 

volunteers, thereby improving community 

relations between asylum seekers and 

refugees and the wider community (24).” 

 
Following discussions with your officer the 

organisation has decided to withdraw their 
application and re-apply with a proposal 

that better meets your priorities. 

 

 
Roots and Shoots “To provide a 'Green Doctor Service' to the 

London -wide community by the two 
resident 'doctors' at Roots and Shoots.” 

 

The organisation has prioritised another 
new project where funding has been 

offered. 

 

 

Southwark Day Centre for 

Asylum Seekers 

“To employ a Volunteers Manager to 

manage, develop and support 60+ 

volunteers, thereby improving community 

relations between asylum seekers and 

refugees and the wider community (24).” 
 

Following discussions with your officer the 

organisation has decided to withdraw their 

application and re-apply with a proposal 

that better meets your priorities. 

 

 

MIND in Ealing & 

Hounslow 

“To empower through advice, guidance, 

information and engagement refugees and 

asylum seekers living with a range of 

mental health issues in the two London 

Page 266



boroughs of Ealing and Hounslow.” 
 

The organisation has been through a period 

of change and restructuring. A revised 

application is likely to be submitted in the 

light of this. 

 

 

Protection Against 

Stalking 

“A caseworker to assist and support 

isolated and vulnerable female victims of 

stalking and harassment.” 
 

Application withdrawn as the work is now 

going to be delivered by a different 

organisation. 

 

 

City of London Festival “The Festival will work with thirty-five 

schools from the City's neighbouring 

boroughs to produce art work from recycled 

materials for the 2013 Festival Procession.” 

  
The organisation had misunderstood your 

rules over timing of repeat applications, and 
applied before it was eligible. It has 

therefore withdrawn this application. 

 

 
Age UK London “To enable the 33 London forums for older 

people to implement an optimised model of 

activism and to establish and evidence their 
impact.” 
 

This application has been withdrawn in 
favour of another project (elsewhere in 

your papers today). 
 

 

Southwark Vietnamese 

Chinese Community 

“To set up a health promotion project 

encouraging older people to lead a more 

active life style.” 
 

Following your Officer's advice, the 

organisation has decided to withdraw their 

application and resubmit it once they have 

secured further funding. 

 

 

 

 

Page 267



Total Withdrawn Applications: 10 

Total Lapsed Applications:  0 

 

 

 

Recommendation 

That you receive this report and note its contents. 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Contact: 

Stewart Goshawk, Principal Grants Officer 

Tel:  020 7332 3712 

Email:  stewart.goshawk@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

Date report written:  20/12/12 

Page 268



Committee: Date(s): 

The City Bridge Trust 10th January 2013 

 

Subject: 

Grants Approved under Delegated Authority 

Public 

 

Report of: 

Chief Grants Officer 

For Information 

 

 

Summary  

 

This Report draws your attention to 5 applications which have been 

approved under delegated authority either by the Chairman and 

Deputy Chairman or by the Chief Grants Officer. 

 

Recommendation 

That you receive this report and note its contents 

 
 

By the Chairman and Deputy Chairman 
 

Organisation      Amount and Purpose of Grant 

 

 
Women's Environmental 

Network Trust 

£10,000 over two years (£2 x 5,000) 

towards the salary and project costs to 
provide a package of outreach support to 

four BAME women-led community food 

growing projects in Tower Hamlets.  

 
London Orchard Project 

Ltd 

£24,950 for the employment of a project 

manager and associated overhead costs for 

a third and final year, subject to a 

satisfactory report on the second year of 

the existing grant. 

 
Ascension Community 

Trust 

£24,400 over two years (£12,000; 

£12,400) towards the continuing cost of the 

Elders Project Co-ordinator's salary. 

 
Somali Well Woman 

Project 

£17,500 for a third and final year for the 

salary of a part time health link worker and 

costs to develop healthy lifestyle 

programmes for Somali elders, subject to 

Agenda Item 9b

Page 269



receipt of a satisfactory monitoring report 

for Year 2 of the previous grant. 

 
Limes Community and 

Children's Centre 

£24,900 for a third and final year towards 

the costs of delivering the Stepping into 

Work project. 

 

 

 

 

Recommendation 

That you receive this report and note its contents. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Contact: 

Stewart Goshawk, Principal Grants Officer 
Tel:  020 7332 3712 
Email:  stewart.goshawk@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
Date report written:  19/12/13 

Page 270



 

 

Committee(s): Date(s): 

The City Bridge Trust 10th January 2013 

 

Subject: 

Reports on Monitoring Visits 

Public 

 

Report of: 

Chief Grants Officer 

For Information 

 

 
Summary  

 

At each of your meetings, you receive two sample monitoring visit 

reports. These are in addition to two substantial monitoring 

reports you receive annually.  One of these, a report reflecting on 

issues arising from the monitoring and evaluation of grants was 
presented to your February 2012 meeting, and a statistical 

monitoring report looking at trends in your grant-making was 

presented to your October 2012 meeting. 

 

Several Members have accompanied officers on monitoring visits 

in recent months. Reports for this Committee are from visits in 
which Deputy Ayres and Mrs Littlechild participated. Reports from 

visits involving other Members will be presented to subsequent 
meetings. 

 

Spare Tyre Theatre receives funding under your Accessible London 
programme for an arts programme for people with learning 

disabilities. New Bridge Foundation is supported under your 

programme of Positive Transitions to Independent Living to 

provide a ‘through the gate’ befriending service to ex-offenders.  

 
Recommendation 

That Members receive this report and note its contents. 

 

 

 

 

 
Contact: 

Tim Wilson 
Tel:  020 7332 3716 
Email:  tim.wilson@cityoflondon.gov.uk   
Date report written:  19/12/2012 

Agenda Item 9c

Page 271



Page 272

This page is intentionally left blank



City Bridge Trust – Monitoring Visit Report 
 

Organisation: 

New Bridge Foundation 

Grant ref: 

10589 (assessing officer 

Clare Thomas) 

Programme area: 

Improving Londoners' 

Mental Health\d)  

Prisoners, ex-prisoners & 

other in the Criminal 

Justice System 

Amount, date and purpose of grant: 

30/06/2011: A grant of £30,000 (3 x £10,000) towards the costs of a London 

'Through The Gate' befriending service subject to a financial update for 2011/12.  

Visiting Grants Officer: 

Ciaran Rafferty, acc by Mrs Littlechild 

Date of meeting: 

11th December 2012 

Met with: 

Chris Thomas (CEO) and Pauline Austin (Volunteer Director) 

1. Introduction to the organisation: 

New Bridge Foundation (NBF) was set up by Lord Longford in 1956 with the aim of 

creating links between prisoners and the community and where the initial focus was to 

reduce the isolation of vulnerable prisoners. Nowadays it’s chief aim is to help 
prisoners keep in touch with the outside world and to help prepare them to rejoin it. 

The current CEO has been at NBF for seven years. 
 

2. The project funded: 

The grant was awarded in June 2011 and commenced straight away as it was for a 
general contribution to the costs of an existing project – a “through the gate” 

befriending scheme targeting prisoners on short-term sentences (ie less than 1 year). 

The specific aims of this project were threefold: to improve the mental health of those 

prisoners; to increase their chances of employment once released; and to reduce their 
likelihood of reoffending.  

3. Work delivered to date: 

The approach is for NBF to recruit, train and support volunteer befrienders who will 

then be allocated to particular prisoners. The volunteers have to make a formal 

application to become befrienders and they are vetted as to suitability etc and to 

ensure a good match. They will visit prisoners in prison and will establish a 

relationship which will continue post release in order to help the resettlement process. 

The volunteer’s role is one of befriending, not of professional support (where this is 

needed then referral to specialist agencies/individuals will be provided). Prisoners lives 

or circumstances are often quite chaotic so more than one volunteer befriender may 

be required in order to meet their needs. 
 

Volunteers have to make an initial commitment of a minimum of 18 months. 

Throughout their period of service they will be required to attend a range of training 

and group meetings which are essential to sharing knowledge and best practice and 

for mutual support. The prisoners are usually recommended or referred to the project 

by the Offender Management staff as the aim is to support those who most need it (ie 

with mental health issues and/or little family support). 
 

Page 273



4. Difference made: 

Measurement or determination of improvement in prisoners’ mental health is usually 

provided by the volunteer befriender. (They are taught things to look for and to make 

a record of each contact though NBF is currently looking at improving the systems for 

this.) Prisoners need help to prepare to live back in the community again and, whilst 

in prison, may have lost some of the skills and abilities to fend for themselves (if they 

ever had them in the first place). To this end NBF maintains very good links with 

Jobcentre + and volunteers will accompany them to interviews, etc. Most of the 

evidence presented as to the impact of the work is in the form of detailed feedback or 

case-study information. Since the grant commenced there has been in excess of 70 

referrals with approximately half of these receiving volunteer support. Presenting 

mental health conditions included schizophrenia, stress, depression and anxiety. 
 

The project has helped those released to find or return to suitable accommodation and 

to begin the process to find employment. Those in need have also been assisted to 

access appropriate mental health services. 
 

In its monitoring report to the Trust NBF has stated that a large proportion of those 

assisted through this project had no friends or family in the UK and so no support to 
resettle and/or to address their mental health needs apart from though this scheme. 
 

NBF raised the impact of some policy/practice issues – eg the hugely damaging effect 
of indeterminate sentencing (citing one person who has been in prison since 2005 on 

this basis and who has written in despair). Another aspect has been the increasing 

number of prisoners who are ex-Service people. 
 

5. Grants Administration:  

CBT’s management of the grant and reporting systems has been fine. For the 
organisation they have found it a tough year to sustain income. They realise that 

there is generally more competition for decreasing funds whilst regular donors are 

also struggling to maintain their level of support. They will reduce costs where they 

can (eg have fewer group meetings, etc). (It was suggested to the organisation that 
closer links with other prisoner/resettlement charities might be of benefit in order to 

share best practice and to avoid any possibility of duplication.) 
 

6. Concluding comments: 

NBF has been around long enough to know its territory well and it was clear from our 

conversation that it understands the underlying issues (eg of sentencing policy, post-

release support) which affect levels of re-offending. It is a member of the Criminal 

Justice Alliance, where it would hope to influence policy, and of Clinks (the support 

body for voluntary sector agencies working with offenders). It works closely and 

productively with the Offender Management Service and, with this project, is clear 

about its duty to provide professionally managed and delivered volunteer support of a 

high quality. 
 

 

 

Page 274



City Bridge Trust – Monitoring Visit Report 
 

Organisation: 

Spare Tyre Theatre 

Company 

Grant ref: 

9886 (assessing officer 

Stewart Goshawk) 

Programme area: 

01.  Accessible London\c)  

Accessible Arts & Sports 

Amount, date and purpose of grant: 

03/06/2010: £120,000 over three years (3 x £40,000) towards a theatre arts 

programme for people with learning difficulties.  

 

Visiting Grants Officer: 

Ciaran Rafferty – accompanied by Deputy 

Ken Ayres, Chief Commoner 

 

Date of meeting: 

14th November 2012 

Met with: 

Arti Prashar (Artistic Director/CEO) and Richard Oyarzabal (Executive Director) 

 

1. Introduction to the organisation: 
 

Spare Tyre theatre was established over 30 years ago and was originally known as the 

Feminist Theatre Co and concentrated on productions. It later became a community 

orientated organisation, working with a wide range of communities. Its current work is 

mostly with adults, including older people, and people with learning difficulties though 
there is some youth theatre work. The Artistic Director has been with the Theatre for 

11 years. 
 

2. The project funded: 
 

The grant commenced in June 2010 and is used to support core posts in the delivery 

of a range of work with and for people with learning difficulties – including to help 
them devise their own pieces of theatre. The three objectives of the project were to: 

improve access to quality arts activities; to raise the profile of the artistic 
achievements and social benefits of participatory arts; and to develop a programme of 

new interactive theatre. 
 

3. Work delivered to date: 
 

A lot of the work delivered is bespoke and deals with the issues raised/encountered 

both by individuals and by groups – they have a steady stream of requests and have 

very good links with a wide range of organisations who will refer potential participants 

as will care agencies and individual carers. Part of the project involves a Company of 

Artists. The emphasis of Spare Tyre’s approach is to focus on the needs and 

aspirations of the individual and to strive to provide them with a platform for their 
work. they offer a very disciplined environment (eg in terms of time-keeping, 

attendance, etc) and people must commit to a 10-wk term. 
 

In a typical year the organisation will deliver up to 60 workshops catering for over 70 

people with learning difficulties plus a range of half- and full-day outreach workshops 
throughout several boroughs across London. The workshops incorporate music and 

drama. The organisation also took part on the CBT stage in the Cheapside Fayre in 

June 2012 and delivered a large number of theatre performances including in schools. 
 Page 275



4. Difference made: 
 

One of the aims of the project is to help participants maintain their skill/competency 

level and to do this there needs to be regular contact. An example of how/when this 

works is with the Street Band which started out meeting monthly and is now weekly. 

The grant has helped the outreach programme become more established and it is this 

programme which enables people from across London to access the Theatre (there 

are now regular workshops in Wandsworth, Hounslow and Redbridge). 
 

The Company of Artists has been very good at bringing different groups together. 

Participants have learned practical skills (eg on performance, set design, costume 

making) as well as “soft” skills eg better self-confidence, self-esteem, participation 

skills.  
 

The organisation keeps very good feedback-type records from participants and is able 

to quote comments which support the personal satisfaction of service users with the 

programmes and activities. Those working with or for participants in other contexts 

(eg teachers or care workers) have also provided evidence of how they feel the 

individuals have developed as a result of Spare Tyre’s work. 
 

Because the project works with people from a wide range of communities it sets out 
to harness particular cultural aspects from those taking part and incorporating these 

into the overall programme. Future work will aim to target more of the outer London 
boroughs (if possible). 
 

5. Grants Administration:  
 

The grant, from the perspective of the organisation, has been administered very 

effectively (eg for grant payments and general reporting systems). From the Trust’s 

perspective the organisation has complied with everything asked of it and has 

provided good monitoring reports so far. 
 

6. Concluding comments: 
 

The Trust is very much aware of the value of the Arts both in engaging with 

disadvantaged communities and in helping to address the disadvantage. Spare Tyre 

theatre has a long history of doing exactly that and is quite expert at it. It places the 

needs, capabilities and aspirations of the individual at the centre of its programmes 

and projects and can help them to move from A to B, whether that be to gain 

personal skills, improve competencies, reduce isolation, or a combination of all of 

these. The organisation has stability and appears well managed and knows the wider 

arts world and the issues currently affecting it.  

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 276



Agenda Item 13

Page 277

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 278

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 14

Page 279

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 282

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Outstanding Items
	Outstanding - Annex

	5 Terms of Reference
	6 Revenue Budgets - 2013/14
	7 Progress Report and Events
	Events Table

	8a Introductory Paper
	8b Grant Recommendations and Assessments
	Annex 1 - 12
	Annex 13-21
	Annex A Strategic Initiative

	8c Grants Recommended for Rejection
	Reject - WWL

	9a Withdrawn and Lapsed Applications
	9b Grants Approved Under Delegated Authority
	9c Reports on Monitoring Visits
	New Bridge monitoring visit report
	Spare Tyre monitoring visit report

	13 Non-Public Minutes
	14 Social Investment Board Update

